STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  
IN THE COURT OF APPEALS

RECEIVED  
JUL 31 2014  
SC Court of Appeals

\_\_\_\_\_  
Appeal from Charleston County

Deadra L. Jefferson, Circuit Court Judge  
\_\_\_\_\_

THE STATE,

RESPONDENT,

V.

MARVIN XAVIER PORCHER,

APPELLANT

APPELLATE CASE NO. 2013-001620  
\_\_\_\_\_

FINAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT  
\_\_\_\_\_

LANELLE CANTEY DURANT  
Appellate Defender

South Carolina Commission on Indigent Defense  
Division of Appellate Defense  
PO Box 11589  
Columbia, SC 29211-1589  
(803) 734-1343

ATTORNEY FOR APPELLANT

STATEMENT OF ISSUE ON APPEAL

Did the trial court err in not granting Appellant Porcher's directed verdict motion when the state did not prove he committed burglary by entering the home of Nancy Wohlberg without her permission when there was no forensic evidence he had been in the home, no eyewitness, and Porcher claimed he obtained the victim's laptop computer from someone on the street?

## STATEMENT OF THE CASE

On July 8, 2013, the Charleston County Grand Jury indicted Marvin Xavier Porcher on the charge of burglary first degree. On July 18-19, 2013, Porcher proceeded to trial before the Honorable Deadra L. Jefferson and a jury. Porcher was represented by William Ted Smith and Jason King. The state was represented by Tyler Whitaker and Jennifer Shealy. The jury returned a verdict of guilty as indicted. Judge Jefferson sentenced Porcher to the minimum sentence of fifteen years. Porcher's attorney filed a notice of appeal. This appeal follows.

## STATEMENT OF FACTS

Nancy Wohlberg was a neighbor of Marvin Porcher and his girlfriend, Cassie, as they lived next door to each other in a mobile home development. Nancy and Cassie also worked together as security guards. On November 2, 2011, Cassie and Porcher ate dinner with Nancy and her friend, Kenny, as Porcher was going to give Nancy a tattoo at her request. During that time, Nancy recalled that Porcher asked to use her laptop computer to check his Facebook account which he did. The next night, November 3, 2013, Nancy and Cassie decide to go out. Nancy paid Porcher for some repair work he did on her home, and he promptly gave the money to Cassie before they left. R. 23, ll. 12 – R. 33, ll. 3; R. 74, ll. 1 – 25; R. 76, ll. 1-25; R. 78, ll. 1-25; R. 80, ll. 1 – R. 85, ll. 25.

While they were out, Nancy received a phone call from the North Charleston police who asked if she had reported a burglary as they had her laptop computer. Nancy said she left her laptop on her bed. She met the police at her home, and discovered that her roommate's television was missing as well as some jewelry boxes which included some of her grandmother's jewelry. When the police told her they found the laptop and jewelry on Porcher, she and Cassie were shocked. R. 86, ll. 2 – R. 97, ll. 7.

Officer Fernando Salgado was working from five p m to one a.m. on November 3-4, 2011 patrolling an area around Stall Street in North Charleston. R. 34, ll. 1 – R. 36, ll. 12. He saw a person on a bicycle and noticed the bicycle did not have a rear blinking light. He turned around and stopped the bicyclist to tell him he needed a rear light. R. 37, ll. 1 – R. 40, ll. 25.

Officer Salgado recognized the man who told his name was Marvin Swinton. Officer Salgado knew this was wrong so he asked for the man's ID who did not give it to

him. When the officer called in and checked, there was nothing under the name Marvin Swinton in South Carolina or New York as Porcher told him he was from New York. Officer Salgado noticed a bulge in the man's jacket and the man appeared sweaty and nervous. Officer Salgado then asked for consent to search and the man consented. The officer found a laptop on the man as well as the man's wallet with his ID which had the name Marvin Porcher. Jewelry including a pearl necklace which Nancy Wohlberg had described were found in Porcher's pocket. According to the officer, Porcher told him he was going to a friend's house to get on the internet. Also found on Porcher were tools including a razor knife, a wrench, an Allen wrench, and a zip tie. Because he had given the officer a false name, Porcher was arrested for providing false information to the police. R. 41, ll. 1 – R. 48, ll. 14.

When they arrived at city hall in the detective unit, Detective Mark Evans came to talk to Porcher. Porcher was also arrested for possession of stolen property. R. 48, ll. 1 – R. 50, ll. 16. Porcher pled guilty to the two charges of providing false information to police and possession of stolen property in municipal court. R. 53, ll. 1 – R. 55, ll. 13

Detective Mark Evans interviewed Porcher who said he wanted to talk to the detective. Porcher told Detective Evans that Porcher purchased the laptop from a man on the street—Remount Road. He did not provide a name or description of the man. The detective opened the computer and learned it belonged to Nancy Wohlberg. He then called her Porcher denied any involvement in the theft of any of the property. The detective recorded the interview but it could not be found. R. 56, ll. 22 – R. 68, ll. 24.

Detective Evans admitted on cross examination that he did not follow up in any way on the information that Porcher provided to him. R. 69, ll. 14 – R. 72, ll. 24.

Deputy Gilbert Baldwin of the Charleston County Sheriff's Department, was dispatched to the home of Nancy Wohlberg on November 4, 2011. He and a police officer were the first to enter the home. He discovered that the rear door had been pried open from the outside which was the point of entry. He testified that many different metal items that were small enough to fit in the door of the jam could be used to pry open such a door. They determined that the missing items were the television from the roommate's room, jewelry boxes and items of jewelry, and the laptop computer. He also searched the next door home of Porcher and Cassie but found nothing. R. 109, ll. 17 – R. 122, ll. 9.

Kathy Kjellman worked as a forensic services investigator with the Charleston County Sheriff's Office, and was dispatched to the home of Nancy Wohlberg on November 4, 2011 to search for forensic evidence. She found two finger prints from a space heater that was in front of the dresser where the television had been. However, these prints were insufficient for identification. The other print was insufficient for SCAFIS which was the South Carolina Automated Fingerprint Identification System. R. 123, ll. 14 – R. 130, ll. 25.

On cross examination, Deputy Kjellman admitted that she did not process the laptop for fingerprints. She found no trace evidence, no DNA; she found only the two prints on the heater. R. 131, ll. 8 – R. 135, ll. 15.

Sarah Lippe, of the Clerk of Court's Office, testified to the two previous convictions for burglary for Porcher. Both were guilty pleas. One was burglary second degree from November 2005 with a conviction date of May 24, 2006. The second one was for a burglary third degree from November 2005 with a conviction date of May 24, 2006. R. 136, ll. 24 – R. 141, ll. 25.

At the close of the state's case, defense counsel moved for a directed verdict on the basis that the state failed to prove Porcher committed burglary because there was no evidence that he entered the home. There were no eyewitnesses, and no forensic evidence. Counsel argued that Porcher had pled guilty to receiving stolen goods and providing false information. Counsel said; "We believe that that is what this case is and should have been resolved for." Counsel argued that the state did not meet their burden of proof for burglary. R. 142, ll. 10 – R. 143, ll. 11.

The state argued that they had proven entry which was most likely made with a tool "consistent with the ones found on his person," and the proximity of time and the short distance from the victim's home and the fact that he had the goods from the home on him. R. 143, ll. 12 – 21.

The judge denied the directed verdict motion by finding there was substantial circumstantial evidence reasonably tending to prove the defendant's guilt. R. 143, ll. 22 – R. 145, ll. 12.

Defense counsel moved again for a directed verdict on the same grounds at the close of the defense case although the defense presented no evidence. R. 146, ll. 7 – 17. After the verdict, defense moved for a new trial and directed verdict. The judge denied both. R. 177, ll. 12 – 178, ll. 6.

## ARGUMENT

The trial court erred in not granting Appellant Porcher's directed verdict motion when the state did not prove he committed burglary by entering the home of Nancy Wohlberg without her permission when there was no forensic evidence he had been in the home, no eyewitness, and Porcher claimed he obtained the victim's laptop computer from someone on the street.

In State v. Hepburn, 406 S.C. 416, 753 S.E.2d 402 (2013), citing State v. Cherry, 361 S.C. 588, 593, 606 S.E.2d 475, 478 (2004), the Supreme Court held that in cases where the state has failed to present evidence of the offense charged, a criminal defendant is entitled to a directed verdict. Only if the state has presented any direct evidence or any substantial circumstantial evidence reasonably tending to prove the guilt of the accused, then the Supreme Court must affirm the trial court's decision to submit the case to the jury. Id.

S.C. Code Section 16-11-311(A) provides: "A person is guilty of burglary in the first degree if the person enters a dwelling without consent and with intent to commit a crime in the dwelling."

In State v. Odems, 395 S.C. 582, 720 S.E.2d 48 (2011), the Supreme Court reversed finding there was not substantial circumstantial evidence for a conviction and the trial court erred in refusing to direct the verdict. Odems was convicted of burglary first degree along with other charges. The evidence presented against Odems was circumstantial and consisted of: (1) less than 90 minutes after the burglary, police found Odems in the getaway car with the burglars and the stolen goods; (2) Odems fled from the police; (3) Odems asked an uniformed person to lie for him to the police. An eyewitness saw only two people at the

crime scene; fingerprints found at the scene did not match Odems; and a co-defendant said Odems did not participate.

Appellant Porcher's case is similar to Odems in that the stolen goods were found on Porcher; and Porcher lied to the police. No fingerprints were found that matched Porcher. Although he did not have a co-defendant testifying, Porcher had a reasonable explanation for having the stolen goods. However, Porcher's case is distinguished in that he did not run from the police but was willing to talk to them.

In State v. Bostick, 392 S.C. 134, 708 S.E.2d 774 (2011), the Supreme Court again reversed the case by finding that the trial court erred in not directing a verdict because the state presented insufficient circumstantial evidence to submit the murder charge to the jury. The evidence against Bostick was: (1) the victim's personal items were found in a burn pile in a neighboring home owned by the defendant's mother; (2) a heavy petroleum product was used as an accelerant in the burn pile and the defendant's mother testified she did not use such accelerants;(3) a pattern of gasoline was found on the defendant's shoes and was used as an accelerant to start a fire in the victim's home after her assailant struck her; (4) blood found on the defendant's jeans and the DNA expert could exclude 99 percent of the population although she could not conclusively state the blood was the victim's.

In State v. Green, 406 S.C. 589, 753 S E.2d 259 (Ct. App. 2014), the Court of Appeals held that attempted first degree burglary was a lesser included charge of first degree burglary. Green was charged with first degree burglary, and the trial court held "there was no evidence in the record upon which the jury could convict Green of burglary first degree because the evidence was simply not there for a showing of entry which is one of the elements of the crime of burglary in the first degree." The trial court granted the directed


verdict on first degree burglary but submitted the case to the jury on attempted first degree burglary which did not require an entry. The Court of Appeals affirmed the trial court.

In Porcher's case, there was no evidence presented that Porcher entered the home of Nancy Wohlberg without her consent. There was no evidence of his entry. The officer checked the door for prints where the lock was broken, but no prints were found. There is less evidence against Porcher than in the case of Odems. The trial court should have directed the verdict of first degree burglary because the state did not prove the elements of the offense which required entry. The most the state could prove against Porcher was being in possession of stolen goods and providing false information to the police. Porcher's explanation that he bought the items from a man on the street was reasonable, and it was reasonable that he gave a false name if he thought the items may have been stolen.

CONCLUSION

Based on the above, the convictions and sentences should be reversed, and the case remanded for the entry of a directed verdict.