ORIGINAL

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

IN THE COURT OF APPEALS

---

Appeal from Charleston County  
Honorable Deadra L. Jefferson, Circuit Court Judge  
Appellate Case Tracking No. 2013-001620

---

The State,

Respondent,

vs.

Marvin Xavier Porcher,

Appellant.

---

**FINAL BRIEF OF RESPONDENT**

---

ALAN WILSON  
Attorney General

WILLIAM M. BLITCH, JR.  
Assistant Attorney General  
S.C. Bar No. 15608

Post Office Box 11549  
Columbia, SC 29211  
(803) 734-3727

SCARLETT WILSON  
Solicitor, Ninth Judicial Circuit

ATTORNEYS FOR RESPONDENT

RECEIVED

JUL 29 2014

SC Court of Appeals

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

IN THE COURT OF APPEALS

---

Appeal from Charleston County

## STATEMENT OF ISSUES ON APPEAL

- I. The trial court properly denied Appellant's motion for a directed verdict because there was substantial circumstantial evidence supporting sending the case to the jury.

## **STATEMENT OF THE CASE**

The State agrees with Appellant's procedural Statement of the Case.

## STATEMENT OF FACTS

Mr. Salgado was a neighborhood resource officer for the North Charleston Police Department. (T.124-125; R. 34-35). Just after midnight on November 4, 2011, he was patrolling on shift when he passed a bicyclist wearing dark clothing and without a rear light. (T.128; R. 38). He made a U-turn and made contact with the bicyclist. Salgado recognized the bicyclist, but when asked for his name, the cyclist gave him a different name from the one Salgado knew. (T.130-131; R. 40-41). Appellant gave him the name Marvin Swinton and his date of birth and then told Salgado he was from New York. Salgado had the North Charleston Police run the name and birthdate through South Carolina and New York records and found no one with that combination. (T.131-133; R. 41-43).

Salgado testified Appellant appeared nervous and sweaty. He also indicated there was a bulge under Appellant's jacket. Salgado asked consent to search Appellant's person and Appellant gave consent. Salgado found a laptop and charger under Appellant's jacket, and his wallet with ID in his pant pocket. The ID contained Appellant's real name, Marvin Porcher. (T.133-134; R. 43-44). Salgado also found a pearl necklace in Appellant's jacket pocket and a cylinder, ultimately found to contain jewelry, in Appellant pant pocket. (T.135; R. 45). Appellant also had a razor knife, a wrench, an allen wrench, and a zip tie in his pocket. (T.137; R. 47). Appellant tried to explain the laptop indicating he was going to a friend's house to use the internet. (T.137; R. 47).

Salgado arrested Appellant for providing false information to a police officer. Appellant was taken to the North Charleston City Hall to meet with a detective. He met

with Detective Evans. (T.137-138; R. 47-48). Evans was a detective assigned to the persons crime unit. (T.149; R. 57). Evans met with Salgado and was given the laptop and charger taken off Appellant's person. Evans turned on the laptop and located information linking the laptop to the victim. He called the victim, provided his name and job title, and asked if she knew where her laptop was located. The victim responded it was at her residence. (T.151; R. 59). Evans asked her to return to her residence and meet someone from Charleston County Sheriff's Office and North Charleston Police Department. (T.152; R. 60).

Evans then interviewed Appellant. After reading Miranda warnings to Appellant, Evans discussed the laptop. Appellant indicated he bought it from someone on Remount Road. He did not provide any details about from whom he purchased the laptop, where exactly on Remount he purchased it, or "any other pertinent details." (T.157-158; R. 65-66). He did not provide the name of the person or even a description of the person that allegedly sold him the laptop. (T.158; R. 66).

The victim lived in a mobile home with a roommate. The home was near the residence of Appellant and his girlfriend. (T.169-171; R. 76-78). Appellant came to her house to do some exterior work several weeks before the burglary. (T.172-173; R. 79-80). On November 2, 2011, Appellant, his girlfriend, and another friend came over to the victim's home so Appellant could put a tattoo on the victim. While in the victim's home, Appellant used her laptop to go on Facebook. (T.175; R. 82).

On November 3, the victim and Appellant's girlfriend visited Appellant where he worked so the victim could give him a payment for the work he performed on her house. While there, he asked if the victim and his girlfriend were planning to go out that night.

(T.176-177; R. 83-84). At that time, the victim did not plan to go out, but later changed her mind and around 9:30 p.m. picked up Appellant's girlfriend at Appellant's house. (T.178; R. 85).

While out with Appellant's girlfriend, the victim received a phone call from a detective who asked if she reported a burglary and also if she owned an Acer laptop. The victim indicated the laptop was left on her bed on top of papers. (T.179; R. 86). The victim then met a county sheriff and someone from North Charleston Police at her home. (T.180; R. 87). Walking through her home with the officers, the victim indicated her laptop, some of her jewelry, and her roommate's television was missing. (T.182; R. 89). The victim later learned Appellant was found with her laptop. She was surprised he would have it. (T.188; R. 95). She also indicated she never gave him permission to be in her home or have her computer. (T.185; R. 92).

Deputy Baldwin was the Charleston County Deputy who met the victim at her residence. (T.206-207; R. 111-112). He indicated that upon entering the residence and making certain it was secure, he noticed the rear door was pried open from the outside. He testified the door frame was pried so the door could open. (T.208-209; R. 113-114). He explained many metal objects could be used to pry the door open, including some of the objects found on Appellant's person when he was arrested. (T.209; 215-216; R. 114; 120-121).

## ARGUMENT

**I. The trial court properly denied Appellant's motion for a directed verdict because there was substantial circumstantial evidence supporting sending the case to the jury.**

Appellant contends the trial court erred in denying his motion for a directed verdict. He contends because there was no forensic evidence and no eyewitnesses showing he entered the victim's home and took the laptop and jewelry then he was entitled to a directed verdict. However, there is substantial circumstantial evidence supporting the denial of his motion for a directed verdict, including the fact he was found in possession of the victim's laptop and jewelry shortly after the burglary occurred. Accordingly, the trial court properly denied his motion for a directed verdict and allowed the jury to perform its function as fact finder.

"When ruling on a motion for a directed verdict, the trial court is concerned with the existence or nonexistence of evidence, not its weight." State v. Weston, 367 S.C. 279, 292, 625 S.E.2d 641, 648 (2006). A defendant is entitled to a directed verdict when the State fails to produce evidence of the offense charged. Id. When reviewing a denial of a directed verdict, the appellate court must view the evidence and all reasonable inferences in the light most favorable to the State. State v. Cherry, 361 S.C. 588, 593-593, 606 S.E.2d 475, 477-478 (2004). "If there is any direct evidence or any substantial circumstantial evidence reasonably tending to prove the guilt of the accused, an appellate court must find the case was properly submitted to the jury." Id. A circuit judge should grant a directed verdict motion when the evidence merely raises a suspicion the accused is guilty. State v. Odems, 395 S.C. 582, 586, 720 S.E.2d 48, 50 (2011).

Pursuant to section 16-11-311 of the South Carolina Code:

(A) A person is guilty of burglary in the first degree if the person enters a dwelling without consent and with intent to commit a crime in the dwelling, and either:

.....

(2) the burglary is committed by a person with a prior record of two or more convictions for burglary or housebreaking or a combination of both; or

(3) the entering or remaining occurs in the nighttime.

S.C. Code Ann. § 16-11-311(A) (Supp. 2013).

In the instant case, the State presented evidence demonstrating Appellant had prior convictions for burglary in the second degree and burglary in the third degree. (State's Exhibits 25 and 27; T. 238-240; R. 198, 199; 138-140). In the alternative, the burglary clearly occurred after the victim left her home to pick up Appellant's girlfriend. The victim picked her up at 9:30p.m. and they were out until after midnight when the victim received the call about her laptop and to return to her home. Accordingly, there is definitely evidence indicating the burglary occurred in the nighttime. The only issue remaining then is whether Appellant entered a dwelling without consent and with intent to commit a crime in the dwelling. The State provided substantial circumstantial evidence Appellant entered the victim's home and took her jewelry and computer without consent.

Appellant knew of and had used the laptop the day before the burglary. He was familiar with the victim's home having worked on its exterior and having been inside the day before to give the victim a tattoo. He also asked hours before the victim left home if she planned to go out with his girlfriend that night.

Most significantly, within hours of the victim leaving her home and before she could even return to find her laptop and jewelry stolen, Appellant is stopped with the items in his possession. He is carrying a laptop under his jacket and has the necklace in one pocket and other jewelry in a pant pocket. He tries to claim the laptop was purchased off Remount Road, but fails to provide any meaningful details to support his story, including no description of the person, no name, no location along the road, nor any other pertinent details. His possession of the laptop is left mostly unexplained, or at best with an unreasonable explanation. Additionally, his possession of the necklace and other jewelry identified by the victim is completely unexplained to the officers. (T.184-185; R. 91-92).

In State v. Campbell, 131 S.C. 357, 127 S.E. 439 (1925), the South Carolina Supreme Court recognized that recent possession of stolen goods was evidence from which the jury could infer the defendant's guilt of larceny or burglary. The Court explained the fact the defendant was found with property from a store which had been broken into and entered was evidence the weight and sufficiency of which was for the jury. The Court elucidated:

The recent possession of stolen property whether in larceny or in burglary, and whether such possession be 'explained' or 'unexplained,' is a circumstance—an evidentiary fact—which may have a greater or lesser weight as proof of guilt, when considered with, and strengthened or weakened by, all the other evidence in the case. If the evidence tends to show the possession to be an honest one, the probative force of the fact of recent possession may be greatly modified or entirely destroyed. If wholly unexplained, it may carry a conviction of guilt to the minds of the jury, but, whether explained or unexplained, it is competent and relevant evidence upon the issue of guilt or innocence.

Campbell, 127 S.E. at 440-441 (quoting State v. Vierck, 23 S. D. 166, 120 N. W. 1098, 139 Am. St. Rep. 1040, 1043 (1909)); see also, State v. Shields, 217 S.C. 496, 61 S.E.2d 56 (1950) (dispelling the contention possession of stolen goods may be some evidence of participation in larceny, it affords no support for a conclusion that appellant committed burglary and finding the Courts of this state have long held it evidence of burglary).

The United States Supreme Court has upheld similar inferences. In McNamara v. Henkel, 226 U.S. 520 (1913), the appellant challenged the inference that recent possession of stolen property provides evidence supporting a conviction for burglary as it did a larceny. The Court explained:

The permissible inference is not thus to be limited. The evidence pointed to the appellant as one having control of the car and engaged in the endeavor to secure the fruits of the burglarious entry. Possession in these circumstances tended to show guilty participation in the burglary. This is but to accord to the evidence, if unexplained, its natural probative force.

Id. at 525; see also Barnes v. United States, 412 U.S. 837, 845-846 (1973) (approving of a jury instruction allowing for the jury to infer the defendant's guilt from his unexplained possession of recently stolen property and recognizing common sense and experience support such an inference).

The courts of this State have continued to hold that evidence of a defendant's recent possession of stolen goods is evidence tending to show his guilt of the burglary or larceny. See State v. Lyles, 211 S.C. 334, 339, 45 S.E.2d 181, 183 (1947) (instructing that proof of a defendant's possession of recently-stolen property supports an inference that the defendant was the person who stole the property); State v. Kimbrough, 212 S.C. 348, 352, 46 S.E.2d 273, 275 (1948) ("If the jury found that he had possession of this

recently stolen property, this fact, with the other circumstances in the case, was sufficient to warrant an inference of guilt.”); State v. Cooper, 279 S.C. 301, 302, 306 S.E.2d 598, 599 (1983) (instructing that the inference to be drawn from recent possession of stolen property is an evidentiary fact as opposed to a rebuttable presumption and constitutes circumstantial evidence of guilt).

The State presented substantial circumstantial evidence, including Appellant’s knowledge and prior use of the laptop; his knowledge of the exterior of the victim’s mobile home; his interest in whether the victim would be out the night of the burglary; and most significantly, his being in possession of several of the items taken during the burglary without any reasonable explanation. Accordingly, this Court should affirm the decision of the trial court denying Appellant’s motion for a directed verdict.

CONCLUSION